
Las Vegas, Nevada 
February 21, 1968 

MINUTES 

A Regular Meeting of the Board of City Commissioners of the 
City of Las Vegas, Nevada, held the 21st day of February, 
1968, was called to order at the hour of I in p.m. with the 
following members present': 

Mayor 	 Oran K. Gragson 
(Arrived 1:50 p.m.) 	  Commissioner 	 Philip M. Mirabelli 

Commissioner 	 S. Grant Stewart 
(Arrived 2:00 p.m.) 	  Commissioner 	 James (Jim) Corey 

Commissioner 	 Wesley G.(Wes) I-bwery 

STAFF PRESENT City Manager 
City Attorney 
Administrative Assistant 
Director of Planning 
Director of Public Works 
Acting Chief of Police 
Fire Chief 
Director of Finance 
Director of Personnel 
Police Sergeant 
Procurement Officer 
Director of License & Revenue 
Director._of Parks (S, Recreation 
Recreation Superintendent 
Assistant City Clerk 

A. R. Trelease 
Sidney R. Whitmore 
Ken Bouton 
Donald J. Saylor 
R. P. Sauer 
Pete Witcher 
C. D. Williams 
Hal Laird 
Bob McPherson 
Ben Compton 
Joe Cathcart 
Jean Dutton 
Don Payne 
Fred Martin 
Aleta E.Watson 

INVOCATION 

PLEDGE OF 
ALLEGIANCE 

1:30 P.M.  
BID OPENINGS 

Referred to 
Procurement 
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The Invocation was given by Commissioner S. Grant Stewart. 

His Honor, Mayor Oran K. Gragson, called the meeting to order 
and the Pledge of Allegiance was given. 

Mayor Gragson: This is the date and hour set for the following 
bid openings: 

1. Bid #3-68 - Conduit, P.V.C. (Fire Department) 
2. Bid #4-68 - Street Light Wire (Electrical Division) 
3. Bid #5-68 - Tree Removal-Various Locations 

(Public Works Department) 
4. Bid #LB4-68 - A/C Pavement - 544 Barbara Way 

(Public Works Department) 
5. Bid #LB5-68 - A/C Pavement - Alley between Sixth & 

Seventh on Lewis Street (Public Works Department) 
6. Bid #LB6-68 - Fire Hydrant Parts (Fire Department) 
7. Bid #LB7-68 - Uniforms (Tire Department) 

Commissioner Stewart moved that Bids 1 through 7 be REFERRED 
to Procurement for tabulation and recommendation. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by the 
following vote: Commissioners Howery, Stewart and Mayor 
Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 



PAYROLL WARRANTS 

Approved 

SERVICE & MATERIAL 
WARRANTS 

Approved 

Commissioner Stewart moved that Service and Material Warrants 
Nos. 300685, 500218, 500493, 500494, 500497 to 500776, 
inclusive, in the amount of $1,690,043.74 be APPROVED and the 
Director of Finance authorized to issue. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Stewart and 
Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that Payroll Warrants Nos. 52807 
to 54200, inclusive, for the Pay Period ending February 3, 1968, 
in the arholint of $213,815.33 be APPROVED and the Director of 
Finance authorized to issue. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Stewart and 
Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 

MINUTES 

Approved by 
reference 

Commissioner Stewart moved that the following minutes be 
APPROVED BY REFERENCE and the Mayor and Clerk authorized to 
sign!' 

REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 1, 1967 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 3, 1968 
SPECIAL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 2, 1968 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Stewart and 
Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 

A.  
B.  
C.  

ZONE CHANGE  

Approved subject 
to condition; 
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ZONE CHANGE - Z-1-68 - APPLICATION OF LAND, INC. AND 
SUNSET BUILDING  
Property generally located on the east side of Paradise Road 
between Sahara Avenue and St. Louis Avenue 

FROM: 	P-R (Professional Office) 
TO: 	C-1 (Limited Commercial) 

Planning Director, Donald J. Saylor: The map will show you that 
there is C-1 zoning in the immediate area and across the street, 
which follows pretty much the policy of the Planning Commission. 
They have recommended approval in accordance with the condition 
as set forth on the agenda. There is no record:of, any protests at 
the Planning Commission Meeting. 

Mayor Gtagson asked if there was anyone present in protest - to 
which there was no response. 

Commissioner Howery moved that Z-1-68 be APPROVED subject to 
the following condition: 

Being in accord with the plot plan. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart and carried by the 
following vote: Commissioners Howery, Stewart and Mayor 
Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 

1. 



ZONE CHANGE  
Z-2-68 

Approved subject 
to conditions 

ZONE CHANGE  
Z-3-68 

Approved subject 
to conditions 
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ZONE CHANGE - Z-2-68 - APPLICATION OF ENGELSTAD 
DEVELOPERS, INC.  
Property generally located on the south side of Lake Mead 
Boulevard between Highland and Lexington 

FROM: 	R-E (Residence Estates) 
TO: 	C-1 (Limited Commercial) 

Director of Planning, Donald J. Saylor: This property is to be 
used for a Stop-and-Go or 7-11 Market. The Planning Commission 
has recommended approval subject to the several conditions as 
listed on the agenda. There was one protest by an adjoining 
property owner; however, it was pretty well resolved in that the 
developer will construct a wall along the south property line. 

Mayor Gragson asked if there was anyone present in opposition - 
to which there was no response. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that Z-2-68 be APPROVED by means 
of a Resolution of Intent, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Being in accord with the plot plan amended to show a 
six foot block wall along the south property line. 

2. Dedication of proper right-of-way as required by the 
Department of Public Works. 

3. Conformance to requirements of Fire and Building 
Departments. 

4. That the Resolution of Intent be restricted to a six 
months time limit. 

5. Signing an agreement 4nd posting a bond for the in-
stallation of offsite improvements. 

6. Landscaping put in as specified by the Planning 
Director. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Stewart and 
Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 

ZONE CHANGE - Z-3-68 - APPLICATION OF DESURE, FAIR AND 
DAVIS  
Property generally located on the northeast corner of East Sahara 
Avenue and Santa Rita Drive 

FROM: 	P-R (Professional Office) 
TO: 	C-1 (Limited Commercial) 

Director of Planning, Donald J. Saylor: There have been other 
properties inthe area changed to C-1 and it has been the policy 
of the Planning Commission to allow this type of use provided 
that it is extremely light commercial and they can provide ade-
quate off;-istreet parking, etc. They have recommended approval 
in accord with the conditions set forth on the agenda. There 
were no protests at the Planning Commission meeting. 

Mayor Gragson asked if there was anyone present in opposition - 
to which there was no response. 



VACATION  - 
VAC-1-68 

Public Hearing 
set for 4/3/68 
2:00 p.m. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that Z-3-68 be APPROVED by means 
of a Resolution of Intent, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Being in accord with the plot plan. 
2. Approval by the Traffic Engineer as to proper ingress/ 

egress. 
3. That the Resolution of Intent be restricted to a six 

months time limit. 
4. Conformance to the requirements of Fire and Building 

Departments. 
5. Conformance to requirements of Public Works 

Department. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Flowery, Stewart and 
Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 

I. 

VACATION - VAC-1-68 - PETITION OF H. GREENE, ET AL  

To vacate portions of land located on Bearden Drive between 
Desert Lane and Shadow Street. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that public hearing on VAC-1-68 
be seit for 4/3/68 at 2:00 p.m. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Stewart and 
Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 

VACATION  - 
VAC-2,68 

Public Hearing 
set for 4/3/68 
2:00 p.m. 

VACATION - VAC-2-68 - PETITION OF CLARK COUNTY DEVELOP-
MENT,_ ET AL 

To vacate portions of land generally located on the West 4-1/2' 
and the East 4-1/2' of Monterey and Mariposa Avenue between 
Exley and St. Louis Avenues. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that public hearing on VAC-2-68 
be set for 4/3/68 at 2:00 p.m. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Stewart and 
Mayor Gtagson voting aye; noes, none. 

TENTATIVE MAP - 
CHARLESTON HEIGHTS 
NO. 49-A 

Approved subject 
to conditions 
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Commissioner Stewart moved that tentative map of Charleston 
Heights No. 49-A, submitted by Sunset Development Company 
comprising appro4imately 4 acres (18 lots) generally located 
south of Lake Mead Blvd. between Jones and Michael Way be 
APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

1. Satisfaction of Public Works Department relative to 
drainage requirements. 

2. That the developer provide a street entrance into Saylor 
Way somewhere between Carl and Lake Mead Blvd. 
either on the west or east side of Saylor Way. 



ZONE CHANGE - 
Z-29-67 

Approved subject 
to conditions 

3. 	That the parcel of land on the west side of Saylor 
Way be posted with signs indicating that it is zoned 
for apartments and also that the tract sales map in the 
tract sales office indicate that the property to the west 
Is zoned for apartments. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, Stewart, 

and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 

ZONE CHANGE - Z-29-67 - APPLICATION OF SPROUL HOMES,INC,  
for reclassification of property generally located at the SW corner 
of Las Vegas Expressway (W. Fremont) and Rainbow Boulevard 

FROM: 	R-E (Residential Estates) 
TO: 	C-1 (Limited Commercial) 

Director of Planning, Donald J. Saylor: This item has been held 
in abeyance for quite some time. We have had some problems 
that we have been trying to work out with the proposed development 
plan showing how it would fit into the subdivision street pattern. 
The proposal of the developer, of course, is not that he intends to 
build a shopping center within the next few months but we have 
had this problem in the past of homes being built in the area and 
then the request for zoning is made, causing problems. He wants 
to do it the right way. The Planning Commission has recommended 
approval subject to the various conditions as stated on the agenda. 
Staff would like to include one more condition in that we are in 
the process now of having to interchange, evaluate it and the " 
possibility of West Fremont going further west than a limited 
access. It may.require'some type of an off-ramp design over a 
corner of the shopping center property, so we would like the 
further condition put in that any additional right-of-way that is 
needed would be excluded from the property included in the 
application. 

Commissioner Stewart: How large is that piece of property? 

Mr. Saylor: Three or four acres, I believe. 

Commissioner Stewart: How about access, either on Rainbow or 
Fremont? 

Mr. Saylor: There would be access allowed on Rainbow because 
from Fremont, south, it is not , limited. There would be no access 
allowed on Westcliff, which is the name of Fremont's west wing. 

Commissioner Stewart: It would be my suggestion that we add in 
here that when we determine how the interchange might fit, that 
at that time it be spelled out how close to that entrance-exit it 
can be so that we don't end up there in the radius with it. 
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Mr. Sauer: The Highway Department.demands 100 feet off of from 
where the ramp would come to grade, I believe, to be fenced for 
no access because of the fact that they have turn-ins. 

(Commissioner Mirabelli arrived at the hour of 1:50 p.m.) 



ZONE CHANGE  - 
Z-32-67 

Denied - Operation 
to be suspended 
immediately - 30 
days to clear lot 

• 	• 
Commissioner Stewart: This, we want to get spelled out. 

Mr. Saylor: When we get with the Highway Department we will 
bring this back for an evaluation. 

Mayor Gragson asked if there was anyone present in opposition - 
to which there was no response. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that Z-29-6'7 be APPROVED by means 
of a Resolution of Intent, subject to the following conditions: 

1. That no access be permitted onto Westcliff. 
2. Dedication of necessary right-of-way as required by 

the Department of Public Works. 
3. Signing an agreement and posting a bond for the install-

ation of offsite improvements as required by the 
Department of Public Works, 

4. That the Resolution of Intent be restricted to a 6-month 
time limit. 

5. If the zoning is approved that it be posted as a commer-
cial area and be shown on the tract map as commercial. 

6. That prior to any construction a detailed development 
plan be submitted to the Planning Commission for 
approval. 

7. If any additional right-of-way is needed that it should 
be excluded from the property included in the application 
and a new plot plan then be submitted for approval. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by the 
following vote: Commissioners Howery, Stewart; 
Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 
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ZONE CHANGE - Z-32-67 - APPLICATION OF GEORGE HEYER  
for reclassification of property generally located on the southeast 
corner of Bonanza and Rancho Road (abeyance from 1/17/68) 

FROM: 	R-E (Residence Estates) 
TO: 	C-2 (General Commercial) 

Director of Planning, Donald J. Saylor: This item was held in 
abeyance from the January 17th meeting, including the property 
of Qeorge Heyer at Bonanza and Rancho - more specifically the 
northwest corner of the property, upon which the used car lot 
operation is now in operation without benefit of a license and 
they have been advised by the City that they will have to remove 
that operation. You did, however, allow them until this date to 
continue in that when the zoning request was considered, the 
owner of the property indicated that they were in escrow and that 
it would possibly be consummated by this date. I have had no 
further information from the owner. I don't see any representation 
of the owner here. I did contact a couple of the people that were 
part of the group that was supposed to purchase the property, but 
they indicated to me that they have nothing firm on the purchase - 
but the escrow was still open. The Planning Commission has re-
commended denial of the 0-2 zoning. 

(Commissioner Corey arrived at the hour of 2:00 p.m.) 



VACATION - 
VAC-5-67 

Stricken from 
the agenda 

Mayor Gragson asked if there was anyone present in opposition 
or who wanted to be heard - to which there was no response. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that Z-32-67 be DENIED and the 
operation of the used car lot be suspended immediately - 30 days 
to clear the lot. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Mirabelli and 
carried by the following vote: Commissioners Howery, 
Corey, Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting 
aye; noes, none. 
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VACATION - VAC-5-67 - PETITION or HAROLD STOCKER ET AL 
, (Abeyance from 12/6/67) 
To vacate the past/west and north/south alleys generally located 
between Fremont Street and Carson Avenue and between Twelfth 
and Thirteenth Streets. 

Director of Planning, Donald J. Saylor: If you will remember at 
the time we discussed this it was pretty well agreed that if he 
had plans for the over-all development of the alley and Nive gave 
him a couple of months to indicate something along this line - I, 
specifically, wrote him within the last two weeks and suggested 
that he should furnish this information, not as a threat, but a 
matter of information, that staff - in the absence of that information, 
would recommend, simply, that the petition be denied and at a 
later date he could re-petition without any prejudice. I have 
heard nothing further from Mr. Stocker, 

Commissioner Mirabelli: Why don't we just hold it in abeyance? 

Mr. Saylor: I believe Mr. Whitmore has something to say. 

City Attorney, Sidney R. Whitmore: It is a public hearing and if 
you want to hold it again it should be to a specific date. It was 
originally held specifically for this date. 

Commissioner Howery: They don't want a public hearing. They 
haven't come in with a plot plan - they knew the meeting was 
today - they submitted nothing telling us what it was for and I 
move that it be stricken from the agenda. If they want to come 
back some other time we will talk to them. 
Mayor Gragson: I am not questioning your decision; however, 
if this date is set for a public hearing we will open it up as a 
public hearing. 

Commissioner Howery: Has a date been set f or a public hearing? 

City Attorney: I think the original date was December 6th. There 
was a hearing held then, was there not? 

Mr. Saylor: Yes. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: He hasn't submitted any plans yet? 

Mr. Saylor: No. 

City Attorney: Apparently, he doesn't want to proceed on it. 



• 	• 
Commissioner Howery moved that VAC-5-67 be stricken from the 
agenda. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart and carried by the 
following vote: Commissiore rs Howery, Corey, Stewart, 
Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 

PRESENTATION OF 
DISTINGUISHED 
ACHIEVEMENT AWARD 
IN THE NATIONAL 
COMMUNITY IMPROVE-
MENT PROGRAM 
CONTEST 

CHARITABLE SOLICI-
TATIONS PERMITS 

Approved 

Director of Planning, Donald J. Saylor: This is an additional 
item which is not on the agenda. The City entered, this year, 
the National Community Improvement Program Contest and we 
did win a distinguished achievement award. This contest is held 
each year and is predicated upon the action program of the City 
the previous year in all facets of community improvement. Our 
particular entry included, among other things, the fire prevention 
program of the Planning Department, the activities of the 
Beautification Committee, the various activities of the garden 
clubs in beautification and the successful junk car removal drive. 

At this time, I would like to present to the Mayor and Commissioners 
this award. 

Mayor Gragson: I want to commend all who had a part in making 
this award possible. It is one that we, as a community, can be 
proud of '• 

Commissioner Howery moved that the following Charitable 
Solicitations Permits, as approved by the Solicitations Review 
Board, be APPROVED and the Director of License and Revenue 
authorized to issue: 

1. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COLLEGE WOMEN -- 
Tickets to a Fashion Show 

2. JUNIOR SERVICE LEAGUE OF LAS VEGAS -- Tickets to 
a Fashion Show and Luncheon 

3. GORMAN HIGH BOOSTER CLUB -- Tickets to a Bingo 
Party and raffle 

4. JUNIOR MESQUITE CLUB -- Tickets to a Mexican 
Fiesta 

5. SOUTHERN NEVADA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL WOMEN'S 
AUXILIARY --- Tickats to the annual "Daffy Dilly" 
Luncheon 

6. CLARK COUNTY ASSOCIATION FOR RETARDED . 
CHILDREN -- General solicitations 
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7. MESQUITE CLUB, INC. -- Tickets to the annual 
Mesquite Club Fashion Show, luncheon and raffle 

8. MESQUITE CLUB, INC. -- a Bazaar 

9. SERVICE LEAGUE OF LAS VEGAS, INC. -- Tickets to 
the opening of the "Mall on the Boulevard" 



10. WESTERN HIGH ROOTERS CLUB -- Tickets to a pancake bash 

11. JOBS DAUGHTERS, BETHEL #3 -- Tickets to a Fashion Show 

12. LAS VEGAS RAINBOW ASSEMBLY #9 -- A Cherry Pie sale 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart and carried by the 
following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, Stewart, 
Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 

GAMING - 
ADDITIONAL 

Approved 

Commissioner Stewart moved that the following applications[ for 
additional games under existing Gaming Licenses be APPROVED 
and the Director of License and Revenue authorized to issue: 

1. JERRY'S LIQUOR & BEER BAR 
1604 West Oakey 
1 slot 

2. BOTTLE HOUSE LIQUORS 
827 Las Vegas Blvd., So. 
1 slot 

3. CALIFORNIA CLUB 
101 E. Fremont Street 
1 slot 

4. SHOWBOAT HOTEL/CASINO 
2800 Fremont St. 
2 "21" tables 

• United Coin Machine 

Elwood Machado 

Casino Coin Machine 
Operators, Inc. 

New Showboat Hotel, Inc. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Corey and carried by the 
following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, Stewart, 
Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, -none. 

RETAIL TOBACCO-- 
ADDITIONAL 

Approved 

Commissioner Mirabelli moved that the following applications 
for additional Retail Tobacco Licenses be APPROVED and the 
Director of License and Revenue authorized to issue: 

Goot Vending Co. 

Clark Vending Co. 

Clark Vending Co. 

Clark Vending Co. 

1. FOXY DOG St GIFT SHOP 
2425 Las Vegas Blvd., So. 

2. DENNY'S RESTAURANT #107 
15 East Fremont Street 

3. DENNY'S RESTAURANT #61 
1205 E. Charlestoft Blvd. 

4. DENNY'S RESTAURANT #2 
1826 Las Vegas Blvd., So. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart and carried by the 
following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, Stewart, 
Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 
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LIQUOR - NEW Commissioner Stewart moved that the following application for 
new Liquor License be APPROVED and the Director of License and 
Revenue authorized to issue: Approved 

1. **TWIN LAKES HOF BRAU 
1054 Tonopah Highway 
Service Bar 

Paul Ferguson - 100% 

** Subject to approvals of Building, Fire and 
Health Departments 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Mirabelli and carried 
by the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

Commissioner Howery moved that the following application for 
new Liquor License be APPROVED and the Director of License 
and Revenue authorized to issue: 

2. 	KENO SNACK BAR 
606 Maryland Parkway 
Beer 

Hilton L. Duke - 100% 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirhbelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

LIQUOR (SE GAMING - 
DELETION OF 
CORPORATE OFFICERS 

Approved 

Commissioner Howery moved that deletion of corporate officers 
under existing Liquor and Gaming License be APPROVED and the 
Director of License and Revenue authorized to make the appro-
priate changes: 

1. 	MAMA MIA, INC. 
562 South Decatur 
Service Bar 
3 slots  

Mama Mia, Inc. 
From: 
Phillip Q. Deale, Pres, 
100% 
Valentine Deale, V.P. 
Rex Shelburne, Sec-Treas 
To: 
Phillip Q. Deale, 100%, 
Pres . , V. P. , Sec-Treas 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Mirabelli and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 
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LIQUOR & RETAIL 
TOBACCO - 
APPROVAL OF 
FRANCHISE 
MANAGERS 

Approved 

Commissioner Mirabelli moved that the following franchise 
manager,, Liquor and Retail Tobacco, be APPROVED and the 
Director of License and Revenue authorized to proceed: 

1. 	7-ELEVEN FOOD STORE #817 
1602 W. Oakey Blvd. 
Beverage Off-Sale 

From: 
Donald L. Burnside 
Resident Manager 
To: 
Gary V. Davin 
LaPreal L. Davin 
Franchise Managers 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

Commissioner Howery moved that the following franchise 
manager, Liquor and Retail Tobacco, be APPROVED and the 
Director of License and Revenue authorized to proceed: 

7-Eleven Food Stores 
of Nevada, Inc. 

2. 	7-ELEVEN FOOD STORE #816 
4950 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Beverage Off-Salle 

7-Eleven Food Stores of 
Nevada, Inc. 

From: 
Donald L. Burnside 
Resident Manager 
To: 
Clarence K. Simpson 
Charlotte Simpson 
Franchise Managers 

Motinn seconded by Commissioner Mirabelli and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

LIQUOR & RETAIL 
TOBACCO - NEW 

Approved 
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Commissioner Howery moved that the following application for 
new Liquor and Retail Tobacco License be APPROVED and the 
Director of License and Revenue authorized to issue: 

1. 	*7-ELEVEN FOOD STORE #846 	7-Eleven Food Stores of 
515 East Oakey Blvd. 	 Nevada, Inc. 
Beverage Off-Sale 

Frank J. Nemetz 
Janet Nemetz 
Franchise Managers 

*Subject to approvals of Building, Fire and Health 
Departments 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Corey and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, F Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 



Commissioner Howery moved that the following application for 
new Private Detective License be APPROVED and the Director of 
License and Revenue authorized to issue: 

PRIVATE DETECTIVE 
LICENSE - NEW 

Approved 
effective 
3/1/68 

1. *JACK  D. RUGGLES INVESTIGATIONS 
2955 Las Vegas Blvd., South 	Jack D. Ruggles 

100% 

*Effective March 1, 1968 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

LIQUOR - REQUEST 
FOR EXTENSION 
OF CLOSURE 

Commissioner Stewart moved that the following request for 
extension of closure under existing Liquor License be APPROVED 
and the Director of License and Revenue authorized to proceed: 

Approved Joe Julian 100% 1. 	JOE JULIAN LIQUORS 
2206 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Package Liquor/Beer Bar 

(Closed 7-9-67. Request for additional 60-day period of 
time -- 3/5/68 thru 5/3/68) 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Mirabelli and carried 
by the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

• Commissioner Howery moved that the following request for ex-
tension of closure under existing Liquor License be APPROVED 
and the Director of License and Revenue authorized to proceed: 

2. COO COO CLUB 
429-B (St C Las Vegas Blvd. ,So. 
Tavern 

Ralph Secrist - 100% 

(Closed 11/3/67. Request for additional 60-day period of 
time -- 3/1/68 thru 4/29/68) 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 
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CHARTTABLE 
SOLICITATIONS 
PERMIT 

Approved subject 
to condition 

BID *67.21  
RELEASE OF 
CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACTS 

Approved 

Commissioner Howery moved that the following request for 
change of location for existing Liquor License be APPROVED and 
the Director of License and Revenue authorized to proceed: 

LIQUOR - CHANGE 
OF LOCATION 

Approved subject 
to condition 1. *MESA LIQUOR 

From: 1103 E. Sahara 
To: S. E. Corner Sahara and 

Richfield 

Harry Levy Liquors,Inc. 
Harry Levy, Pres. 
Alvin Levy, V. P. 
Arthur Turk, Secy-Treas. 

*Subject to approvals of Planning, Building, Fire and 
Health Departments 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

Commissioner Howery moved that the following applications for 
Charitable Solicitations Permits, as approved by the Solicitations 
Review Board, be APPROVED and the Director of License and 
Revenue authorized to issue: 

1. *NEW MORNING STAR BAPTIST CHURCH -- Sale of lunches 
(*Subject to approval of Health Department) 

2. 	ACCENT ON YOUTH -- Sale of advertising in a souvenir 
program and sale of tickets to the Accent on Youth event. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Mirabelli and carried 
by the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

BID #67.21 - HADLAND PARK BASEBALL FLOODLIGHTING 

Director of Public Works, R. P. Sauer: The contractor, Acme 
Electric, has completed all work in connection with the install-
ation of lighting with the exception of the final check out of 
lighting for which a $500.00 cash bond has been posted. Final 
adjustment of units cannot be completed until the power company 
has installed a transformer for power service. It is the re-
commendation of this office that the performance bond be released 
and the 10% contract retention paid on the regular release date 
of February 28, 1968. The contractor will be under a one-year 
guarantee bond. 

Commissioner Mirabelli moved that the recommendation of the 
Director of Public Works be APPROVED. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 
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BID #66.26  
RELEASE OF 
CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT 

Approved 

BID #67.29  
RELEASE OF 
CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT 

Approved 

BID #67.35 -SAD#478  
RELEASE OF 
CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT 

Approved 

BID #66.26 - MUNICIPAL PARKING GARAGES, CARSON STREET  
BETWEEN 2ND AND 3RD STREET, OGDEN STREET BETWEEN 3RD  
AND 4TH STREET  

Director of Public Works, R. P. Sauer: The contractor, Sletten 
Construction Company, has requested release of the bond and 
payment of the retention. These garages will be under a one-
year guarantee bond. Release date - February 28, 1968. 

Commissioner Mirabelli moved that release of construction 
contract under Bid #66.26 be APPROVED. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Grag son voting aye; noes, 
none. 

BID #67.29 - DRAINAGE CORRECTION, DECATUR AND MICHAEL 
WAY 

Director of Public Works, R. P. Sauer: Tab Construction has 
completed all work satisfactorily. It is recommended the bond 
be released and payment of the retention made. Release date - 
February 20, 1968. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that the recommendation of the 
Director of Public Works be APPROVED. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Mirabelli and carried 
by the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mir'abelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

BID #67.35 - UNIT III, BID II, SAD #478 - ELECTRICAL WORK  
ON ALGIERS 

Director of Public Works, R. P. Sauer: Acme Electric Company 
has completed all work on Unit III, Bid II, SAD #478, Electrical 
work on Algiers. It is recommended that the retention be released, 
however, that the bond be held until completion of all SAD 478 
work. It is recommended that the retention be released on 
February 28, 1968. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that the recommendation of the 
Director of Public Works be APPROVED. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Mirabelli and carried 
by the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 
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BID #67.42  
RELEASE OF 
CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT 

Approved 

RIGHT-OF-WAY 
ITEM 

Approved 

REQUEST OF BUNKER 
BROTHERS TO PURCHASE 
CITY OWNED PROPERTY 

Offer accepted based 
on appraisal by MIA 
made within the last 
year 

BID #67.42 - RD STREET WIDENING 

Director of Public Works, R. P. Sauer: The Mesa Construction 
Company has completed all work satisfactorily in connection 
with the widening of street sections adjacent to the parking 
garages. It is recommended that the bond and retention be re-
leased on February 27, 1968. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that the recommendation of the 
Director of Public Works be APPROVED. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Mirabelli and carried 
by the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

Commissioner Mirabelli moved that the following right-of-way 
item be APPROVED and the Department of Public Works authorized 
to proceed: 

Grant, Bargain Sale Deed  
From: 	William Singleton, Trustee 
To: 	City of Las Vegas 
For: 	Portion of SE-1/4, Section 32, T20S, R61E - 

West Charleston Boulevard 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

Commissioner Mirabelli moved that the following item be held 
in ABEYANCE for the next regular meeting: 

2. 	Quitclaim Deed  
From: 	City of Las Vegas 
To: 	Clark County School District, successor in 

interest to Las Vegas School District No. 12 
For: 	Portion of NE-1/4, Section 2, T21S, R61E, 

Westerly extension of Pauline Way 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

The following letter was read by Director of Public Works, R. P. 
Sauer: 

"February 8, 1968 

Mr. Arthur Trelease 
City Manager 
City of Las Vegas 
Las Vegas, Nevada 

1. 

Dear Mr. Trelease: 
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Bunker Brothers Mortuary, Inc. is the owner of the 20 
acres of land immediately north and contiguous to the 
property now owned by the City of Las Vegas known as 
Lions Park. 



We desire to purchase from the City of Las Vegas; for 
cash, that parcel of property which lies north of the 
present fence line of said Lions Park. Said property 
consists of a strip of land approximately 30 feet wide 
and 1640 feet in depth. 

We have a sizeable project planned for this area and the 
acquisition of this 30 foot parcel will facilitate our de-
velopment considerably. We are prepared to enter into an 
escrow agreement immediately for the purchase of this pro-
perty and as time is of the essence we would appreciate 
your usual prompt attention to this proposal. 

Faithfully yours, 
/s/ Berkeley L. Bunker" 

Mr. Sauer: Actually, based upon what the mortuary paid on the 
land adjoining, it was $275.00 per front foot (35 ft.) or $8,250.00. 
There are 30 feet for the rest of it - 8/10 of acre -at $6,198.00, 
making a total of $14,448.00; however, I believe the policy has 
been to refer this to the Real Estate Committee since an appraisal 
is needed. 

Mayor Gragson: When was this property purchased? 

Mr. Bunker: Approximately eight (8) months ago. 

City Attorney: Normally, we need an appraisal. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: Do we provide the appraisal? 

Commissioner Stewart: We usually add it on to the price of the 
land. 

Mr. Sauer: If the Commission so desires, they could authorize 
an appraisal of the property immediately. 

Commissioner Howery: If that is what we have to do, I will 
make a motion that we do so immediately. We don't want to hold 
them up if they have something they want to build. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Mirabelli and carried 
by the following vote: Commissioners_Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

City Attorney: I wonder if, perhaps, they have an appraisal on 
the other recently. 

Page 16 - Minutes 
Regular Meeting 
February 21, 1968 

Mr. Bunker: It was appraised by a MIA appraiser. 

Commissioner Stewart: When? 

Mr. Bunker: Eight (8) months ago. 

Commissioner Corey: Do you have a copy of that appraisal? 

Mr. Bunker: Yes, we do. 



• 	• 
City Attorney: If you will submit a copy and the Commission is 
agreeable to that, we might accept that, if you like. 

Mayor Gragson: I think we have this problem. If we appraise it 
at what this 30 feet is worth to an individual - it isn't worth 
anything. 

CitylAttorney: If they have an appraisal within a year and it is 
by a MIA, I think it would be acceptable to the City if there are 
no material differences. 

Commissioner Stewart: When can you get it? 

Commissioner Corey: Can you get it before the meeting is over? 

Mr. Bunker: Yez--i, 

Commissioner Corey: What I am thinking about, Your Honor, I 
went down and took a look at this particular piece of property 
and it is a 30-ft. piece of "No Man's Land", really. It is be-
hind a fence and if you put a fence on the other side you have 
a 30-ft. piece in there that would be absolutely worthless - 
would be a dirt catcher and an eye sore. I think we would be 
smart to get rid of it. 

City Attorney: I think NAre could accept it on the basis that they 
will file an appraisal. 

Commissioner Howery: I will make a motion that we accept their 
offer, based upon the appraisal that they say they have, if it is 
MIA, and that the prior motion be rescinded.  

Motion seconded by Commissioner Corey and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

City Attorney: If they will contact us, we will set up an escrow 
or , whatever you want. 	. 

PROPOSED S.A.D. 
FOR STREET LIGHTING 
FROM L.V..BLVD., 
NORTH TO 25TH ST. 
FROM BONANZA TO 
FREMONT 

Public Works author-• 
tzed to proceed. with 
plans & specifications 
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Director of Public Works, R. P. Sauer: We have 54.37% by front 
footage and 56.43% by property owners. This, of course, includes 
those letters which were mailed and they did not reply. This was 
considered a "yes" vote. There were some 200 returned "unclaimed 

Mayor Gragson: Are you counting those in the "yes"? 

Mr. Sauer: No, they were not counted at all. I would like to 
point out that if the Commission directs the Public Works Depart-
ment to prepare plans and specifications the cost of this is 
practically been taken care of already, because, if you will recall, 
two and one-half years ago we retained a consultant based on a 
previous survey and most all of this has been designed already. 
We have divided them into small areas and in the past two years 
and most of them are now improved. This is about the last one 
of the over-all package that was presented some two or three 
years ago. 



• 
Mayor Gragson: Whete is the only unblighted area that we have 
left? 

Mr. Sauer: There is one, Your Honor, on Industrial Road from 
Sahara north between Fifth Street, 

Commissioner Stewart: That area down there from New York to 
Sahara between Fifth and Industrial. What is our cost in getting 
plans and specifications together? 

Mr. Sauer: I can't tell you right now. As I said, most of it has 
been done...... 

Commissioner Stewart: How much of it isn't done? What I am 
asking is how much capital are we to have. 

Mr. Sau0r: There is to be none. This is to be done by our own 
Electrical Engineers....... 

Commissioner Mirabelli: Your men aren't worth anything - is 
that what you are saying? It costs us money. 

Commissioner Stewart: We will get refunded for what we have 
already spent. 

Mr. Sauer: That's true,. 

Commissioner Corey: On the strength of that, I am for it. 

Commissioner Howery: You say there are about 1500 property 
owners involved and there are about 200 that you were unable to 
contact, returned unclaimed. This represents about 15% of the 
people. You are working pretty close on a 54-46 - I think , • 
futther efforts should be made to locate( these other property 
owners. I don't think we h ave a clear-cut majority here. If they 
have received then and hadn't answered them, I would say "yes." 

Commissioner Mirabelli: It would be a terrible chore to locate 
them - they are out of town, etc. 

Mr. Sauer: Commissioner Howery, how we do this - we obtain 
the last known address from the County Assessor and send out a 
certified letter to them. All we can assume is that the people 
that don't pick it up - the property has been sold, etc. 

Commissioner Howery: You say the last known property owner. 
Wouldn't that be shown on the transfer? 

Commissioner Stewart: It takes a year before the Assessor picks 
it up. If you waited a year, you might pick: up those 200d 
lose another 200. 

'Commissioner Stewart moved that the Public Works Department 
be directed to prepare the plans and specifications . 
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Motion seconded by Commissioner Corey and carried by the 
following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, Stewart, 
Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting, aye; noes, none. 



REQUEST OF JOE 
F. CARTER RE 
LEASE OF CITY-OWNED 
PROPERTY 

Referred to Real Estate 
Committee (M&H) 

• 
Director of Public Works, R. P. Sauer: We have a letter from Mr. 
Joe F. Carter which reads as follows: 

"February 14, 1968 

Mr. Art Trelease 
City of Las Vegas 
Las Vegas, Nevada 

Re: Lease of City Property 

Dear Mr. Trelease: 

The undersigned wishes to lease vacant land belonging 
to the City of Las Vegas, located on the Southwest cor-
ner of Oakey Boulevard and Industrial Road. 

The undersigned is willing to enter into a lease agree-
ment for a period of five (5) years at the sum of $50.00 
per month. 

Please consider this letter an offer to enter into a lease 
agreement. 

Very truly yours, 
/s/ Joe F. Carter 
JOE F. CARTER" 

This has been discussed with the City Manager and the Planning 
Department and we recommend that it be referred to the Real 
Estate Committee. I would like to point out, however, that this 
is industrial property. I think it is about 291 ft. deep by 150 ft. 
long. I believe he is going to use it as a parking lot. 

Mayor Gragson: If we do anything at that price it should be on 
a month-to-month basis. 

Commissioner Stewart: Mayor, the property is actually worth, 
and I know where a piece of industrial property down there - not 
on the corner - was sold and the property is worth at least 
$100,000.00. You can't lease this kind of property for $50.00 
a month. It is worth $6,000.00 a year minimum. 

Commissioner Howery: What are we getting out of it? 

Mr. Sauer: Nothing. I think we should check first, or the Real 
Estate Committee should have it checked to determine whether 
we would be assessed taxes. 

City Attorney, Sidney R. Whitmore: We might well be. I think 
that we will on the basis of what they did to Reno in leasing 
property when it went on to the tax roll. I don't believe the 
law has been changed. 
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Commissioner Stewart: While we are talking about the corner, I 
think it would behoove us to put a sign up there - "FOR SALE" 



REPORT ON TRAFFIC 
SIGNAL AT "J" AND 
OVVENS 

Abeyance 

• 
and to contact the City Manager. 

Mr. Sauer: The reason, up to now, we have never gone into that 
is because we assume that we are going to have to have a satellite 
yard, either for the electrical or the gtreets, in the future. I realize 
it is a pretty expensive piece of property for this. It could be 
leased, if the Commission desires, until we need it. 

Commissioner Stewart: If you lease it - wouldn't it be subject to 
taxes? We could lease it for the rent plus taxes. 

Commissioner Corey: I would have no objection to that, Your 
Honor - month to month. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: I'm not ready to move on this yet, fellows. 
I want to look at it. 

Mayor Gragson: I'm not ready to move on it yet. I do think if we 
draw anything up that it should be on a month-to-month basis. 
We will refer it to the Real Estate Committee. I will designate 
the  Real Estate Committee  as Commissioners Mirabelli and Howerv. 
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Director of Public Works, R. P. Sauer: I have a report from our 
Traffic Engineer, Mr. Bossi, who made a 16-hour turning movement 
study on Tuesday, February 8th, at the intersection of "J" and 
Owens.'; The information was then applied to the signal warrants 
and we have the back-up information, if you care to see it. The 
warrants show that the intersection does not warrant a traffic 
signal and it is, therefore, recommended that the request be lienied. 
The intersection site is unrestricted and the two accidents_Which, 

were in the intersection were caused by motorists entering the inter-
section without due caution. Gaps in the traffic on Owens offered 
safe periods for the traffic to enter off of "J" Street. 

Commissioner Corey: A study was made on it? 

Mr. Sauer: A study was made on it and it did not meet the warrants. 

Commissioner Mirabel 11: I would like to hold this in abeyance 
and look at it further. 

Mayor Gragson: I would, too. I just can't believe the warrants
are always the final determination. 

Commissioner Stewart: I grant you are right on a 16 to 24 hour 
period, but there is an hour in the morning and an hour in the after-
noon when we have those situations. 

Commissioner Corey: Why don't we have a report on those parti-
cular hours? 

Commissioner Mirabelli: They can show you hour-to-hour on those 
reports. If we hold this, we should all get a copy of it. 

Mr. Sauer: We will see that all of you get a cop. 

Mayor Gragson: When they are going to work is an important hour. 



TRAFFIC (S( PARKING  
Request of First 
Church of Religious 
for 15-minute loading 
zone at 217 No. 3rd 
Street 

Approved 

• 
Director of Public Works, R. P. Sauer: We have a request from the 
First Church of Religious Science for 15-minute loading zone in 
front of 217 North 3rd Street, The Traffic and Parking Commission 
recommends denial. This was indicated upon the indicated ample 
curb spaces that were available in the 200 block and it was felt 
that a loading zone mid-block would not serve properly because of 
other businesses intthe area. 

Commissioner Stewart: They have an alley in the rear - do they 
not? 

Commissioner Mirabelli: There are plenty parking spaces - did 
you say? 

Mr. Sauer: Yes, 

Commissioner Mirabelli': Then, what is this going to hurt? 

Mr. Sauer: There is plenty curb space parking there already. 
What they are asking for is for a loading zone in front,. 

Commissioner Stewart: If they have an alley, I don't see where it 
is needed. 

Mayor Gragson: I think you would have to know the condition of 
the propetty before we would know if the alley is adequate. 

Mr. Sauer: The study was made by the Traffic Engineer to be pre-
sented to the Traffic and Parking Commission. 

Mayor Gragson: Will this impede the traffic flow in there? No'. 
What I mean, is this just an arbitrary decision that was made'or 
was the decision made that they do not need it? 

Mr. Sauer: That is correct. It was presented to the Traffic and 
Parking Commission following a study by the Traffic Engineer and 
it was his considered opinion, after studying it with the traffic 
officer, that it was not necessarily... 

Commissioner Corey: I make a motion that we follow the re-
commendation of the Traffic and Parking Commission. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart,and failed to carry by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Mirabelli and Mayor 
Gragson voting "no" - Commissioners Corey and Stewart voting 
aye. 

Commissioner Stewart:, We had better make another motion, then. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: No. 

Commissioner Corey: The T & P has already heard it. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: I understand that. 
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Commissioner Stewart: The motion was to deny it and that is where 
it stands, and you haven't approved it. 

Mayor Gragson: OK, we need another motion. 



Commissioner Mirabelli: If you would like, I would be glad to 
hold it for two Weeks. 

Commissioner Stewart: OK. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: Right now, based on the information that 
I have, I am for it.. 

Commissioner Corey: What information do you have that I don't 
have? 

Commissioner Mirabelli: I said, based on the information that I 
hay e right now, I would be for it. 

Commissioner Corey: The Traffic and Parking Commission re-
commends denial. They have studied it. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: Don't you ever vote against them? 

Commissioner Corey: Not if I don't have any other information. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: Well, do you want two weeks to go and 
look at it? 

Commissioner Corey: No. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: Then, I will move for APPROVAL. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by the 
following vote: Commissioners Howery, Mirabelli and Mayor 
Gragson voting aye; Commissioners 'Corey and Stewart voted 
"no." 

Commissioner Corey: Why do we have the Traffic and Parking 
Commission? 	 • 

Mayor Gragson: If the Traffic and Parking Commission makes the 
final decision, why bring it before us - may I ask? 

Commissioner Howery: It would be like the Planning Commission 
when we vote against them. 

Commissioner Corey: Yes, but we usually have something else to 
go on. I don't have any other information other than the Traffic and 
Parking Commission recommended denial. I assume that they know 
what they are doing. 

Commissioner Howery: I think there should be a greater explanation 
on why they recommended denial. 

Mayor Gragson: As long as there is plenty of parking space in the 
area and it isn't needed, I don't know who would know more than 
the operators there and they must have felt that it was needed or 
they wouldn't have made the request. It doesn't impede the traffic 
in any way. 
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Mr. Sauer: I have the minutes of the Traffic and Parking Commission 
meeting. 

Mayor Gragson: We have already acted - we don't need them. 



REQUEST OF TRAFFIC 
ENGINEER TO RAISE 
SPEED LIMIT ON 
EASTERN BETWEEN 
CHARLESTON AND 
SAHARA FROM 25 
MPH TO 30 MPH' 

Approved for 
35 mph 

• 	• 
Director of Public Works, R. P. Sauer: We have a request from the 
Traffic Engineer to raise the speed limit on Eastern between 
Charleston and Sahara from 25 mph to 30 mph. The Traffic and 
Parking Commission has recommended approval. 

Commissioner Stewart: I think we should stay with the standard 
25 or 35 and move that the request be APPROVED for 35 MPH. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

Mayor Gragson: I hope that the day never comes when we have to 
rubber stamp the Planning Commission, the Traffic and Parking 
Commission and all the others. 

Commissioner Corey: Your Honor, I spent. a lot of time on that 
Planning Commission and I spend hours and hours down here 
going over these things so that we can recommend to you with a 
good conscience what we feel is a good thing for the City. If 
you are not going to listen to us there is no use in me spending 
my time down here, and the rest of the gentlemen that serve on 
the committees. 
Mayor Gragson: I don't always agree with you and probably never 
will all the time. 

Commissioner Stewart: Your Honor, I recommend that we have a 
10-minute recess. 

(Mayor Gragson annoptnced that there would be a 10-minute recess) 

(Meeting resumed at the hour of 2:50 p.m.) 

PARKING PRIVILEGES 
FOR THE WORKING 
PRESS 

Commissioners 
Howery & Mirabelli 
appointed as a 
committee to 
evaluate 
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Mayor Gragson: We have some members of the Press here who are 
interested to know what, if any, disposition we'are going to make 
concerning parking privilieges for the working Press. I believe we 
have a committee on that, do we not? 

Commissioner Howery: No, Sir, Your Honor, you didn't appoint one. 
The whole board discussed taking them off for everyone, but there 
hasn't been a committee appointed. 

Commissioner Stewart: Ken Bouton sent out a letter with some 
suggestions and I thought the recommendation was very fine that 
the newspaper be given the privilege of buying a year's parking 
privilege pass for a small fee - $5.00, $7.50 or something like 
that, and this would solfvle the problem. It is done this way in other 
cities, as he stated in the report. 

Mayor Gragson: Now, we have boards and commissions who serve 
the City, such as the Traffic and Parking Commission - especially, 
them, I have had those members in thinking it is extremely unfair 
for them to serve on this committee and walk out and find a $2.00 
parking ticket. I would have to agree. I think that we should 
analyze the ones that are actually deserving of these parking privi-
leges and proceed with it. 



Commissioner Howery: I won't argue with that, Your Honor. You 
will remember, I was the one that recommended taking them all off.-
including our own. There were so many of them that were so far out 
of line. I'm not opposed to the working . -E=,'SS if they are the ones 
that get them, but I don't think we should have a free book here to 
anyone that is employed by the newspaper, radio or TV so that they 
can have them automatically. If the papers say that they have four 
(4) working reporters and they want four (4),- I would say let's give 
them four (4) - but, not just "here they are ,- whatever you want." 

Mayor Gragson: This is the thinking of the Press. 

Commissioner Stewart: How many would each newspaper have to 
have? What is the limit? 

Jim Burris: I would say that the maximum for the entire County 
would be twenty (20) people. 

Commissioner Stewart: We aren't talking about the whole County. 
We are talking about just the City of Las Vegas. 

Mr. Burris: This is a sheer maximum number of personnel actively 
engaged in gathering news and working on a beat. 

Commissioner Corey: In all media? 

Mr. Burris: Right. 

Mayor Gragson: I would suggest that we consider, in order to be 
positive, issuing a specified number of permits and let the news 
media decide who in their organization is entitled to one of this 
limited number of permits. 

Commissioner Stewart: Is there an association that could do this? 

Commissioner Howery: Each newspaper could do this. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: Call them up and ask them how many they 
need. 

Commissioner Stewart: They would say twenty(20) each. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: No, they won't. Tell them what our 
thinking is first. 

Mr. Burris: For the record, I would like to make a few comments 
on this. My journalistic colleagues have elected me spokesman. 
Las Vegas currently is the only major metropolitan area to my 
knowledge that isn't providing parking, in one form or the other, 
fot the Press. It has to be because of the economic structure of 
a reporter's salary. The average newsman in this town makes about 
the average of $125.00 a week. If you hit him with $25.00 a week 
for parking tickets, with what we are getting and doing our jobs, 
you are talking about a 25% cut in his income, which he certainly 
can't afford. I don't think you gentlemen could afford a 25% cut in 
your income. 
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Commissioner Corey: For the record, could we have your name? 

Mr. Burris: Jim Burris of the Las Vegas Sun. 



Say, you are covering a Press Conference at the Fremont Hotel. It 
may be a national personage who is saying some nice things about 
Las Vegas. All news is not bad news. We print a lot of good news. 
If you have to dash out at a crucial point and put a nickel in the 
meter and you have to tell your Managing Editor that you didn't get 
the story because you were feeding the parking meter, you have lost 
your job. I have some tickets here belonging to our Police Reporter. 
The nature of his job; causes him to have to cover the highway 
patrol, the sheriff's department, city police, the airport, etc. He 
has to move around and he is bound to pick up a couple or three 
tickets each day. We have three or four reporters that are on roving 
assignments, our photographers, for example. I have the county 
beat. I am fortunate. There are two parking spaces provided at the 
County Courthouse, one for the Review-Journal and one for the Sun. 
The radio and television guys are out of luck. There is no parking 
provided for them and sometimes they have photographic equipment 
to carry with them for blocks. There are two spaces at the airport, 
but I have never seen a reporter able to park there yet. They are 
usually taken by a member of the civilian population. When I go 
out - many times I will call for a photographer and almost every 
time he will get a ticket because of waiting for someone to come 
out - perhaps, a criminal suspect who is being arraigned, say at 
2:00 o'clock and the arraignment runs until 3:30. The photographer 
can't run across the street and put more money in that meter, as 
that is the time it is over with and he has only 20 to 30 seconds in 
which to get a picture of this person. So, it is a problem that the 
reporters can't help. It is as simple as that. They can't afford it 
financially. They shouldn't have to pay for the privilege of cover-
ing the news and I think it does fall under the title of public 
service in informing the public. I think anything over a nominal 
fee to the publisher would not be fair, because they would be paying 
for the privilege of putting out the news and we have a City where 
we have two (2) newspapers and several television stations, which 
makes for pretty fair competition - in political campaign years to 
assure fair campaigns, etc. 

Mayor Gragson: Does it insure fair treatment of the office holders? 

Mr. Burris: Well, yes, I .......... 

Mayor Gragson: I am being factitious, to a degree. 

Mr. Burris: I am not being factitious in advising the commissioners. 
Reporters are human and if a reporter is being docked $25.00 to 
$30.00 a week, and he is writing a story about someone that is 
responsible for it, I don't know 	 

Commissioner Howery: That statement lost me and I vote against 
any of the m. 
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Commissioner Corey: Let me make one statement, Jim. I may be 
committing political suicide, because I want to say that a person 
that sells -advertising in a newspaper has a job to (do and he does 
a good job. They sell me every day. I buy,advertising for my place 
of business, etc., and maybe he is almost to the point of closing me 
and he has to run out and put a nickel in the meter - maybe he won't 
do it, then he has a ticket. He has a job to do and he knows that 
he has to take care of that parking meter. A man that is writing news 
has a job to do and he is expected to do it in the best manner possible. 
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If he has to eat a ticket because he thinks he is going to get some-
thing that will help him to do his job better - then, that is his 
business - the same as a man that takes an ad for TV or anything 
else. I think that we should make some arrangements for the people 
that are in this particular business, whether they are selling ads, 
taking news copy or whatever in order that they may buy a year's 
pass - I think that is fine. I think it should be open to anybody 
that happens to be in that particular business, whether it is selling 
real estate, insurance or anything else, but I will not allow myself 
to be threatendd that I will get bad Press 	  

Mr. Burris: I thought we were kidding exchanging with the Mayor 
there, in a bit of joviality. 

Commissioner Howery: I think he was. Mayor, I have a suggestion. 

Mayor Gragson: O.K. 

Commissioner Howery: I suggest that we give each newspaper six 
(6) and each TV station four (4), each radio station two (2) and they 
tell us who they want them assigned to. 

Mayor Gragson: The ordinance will have to be changed. 

Mr. Burris: Your current pool - actually, each of your television 
stations currently have three (3) people working news. At the pre-
sent time, there is only one (1) radio station employing .a newsman. 

Commissioner Howery: I was trying to be fair about it, but we need 
to find out what their actual needs are. If they have three (3) 
people working, we don't want to give them four (4), etc. I was 
just trying to arrive at a figure. 

Mr. Burris: I might make a suggestion on how you might a fair and 
equitable figure on this and how the list got out of proportion before. 
It was a chance for department heads to score, I don't know, maybe 
a point in favor for the people where you had so many salesmen and 
display people, etc. that had the stickers. You could contact the 
executive editors of the two newspapers and the general managers 
of the television stations. 

Mayor Gragson: Would you do this since you have been appointed 
by your group - develop for us the need, as farTae you can, of the 
working Press, meaning newspapers, television, radio, etc. and 
get in to the committee that I am going to appoint. I, also, want 
the committee to evaluate the needs of our boards and commissions. 
I am going to appoint Commissioners Howery and Mirabelli on that 
committee. 

Mr. Burris: How long will that take in order that I may report back? 

City Attorney: You have to refer an ordinance in. If you can get the 
material to me I can bring it in at the next meeting as an emergency 
ordinance, if you desire. 

Mayor Gragson: I think this can well be done as an emergency 
ordinance. 

City Attorney: I will need the material in so far as the amounts and 
number, etc. 	How about the fee? 
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Mayor Gragson: I think the fee is so insignificant that I don't think 
that we should 	 

Commissioner Howery: We either give it to them, or we don't. 

City Attorney: Will they be issued some kind of sticker? Is this 
what you are thinking? 

Mayor Gragson: Yes. 

Commissioner Corey: Are you going to include the commissioners 
in this? 

Commissioner Mirabelli: The committee is going to make a re-
commendation an&we will take a vote on it. 

Mayor Gragson: The Press tells us they are the guardian of the 
people - yet, they are indicating that they would like for us to 
violate our own ordinance, but we will attempt to correct the 
condition. 

Mr. Burris: It may ppear to be a minor governmental problem to 
me and it may have its major administrative overtones, but I don't 
know. I do know that it is taken care of in other cities and I have 
worked in other major cities in this capacity and it is taken care of 
as an exercised right. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: Will you call the City Manager and let 
him know what those figures are? 

Mr. Burris: I will have the list tomorrow. 

Mayor Gragson: Very good, then we will proceed from here. 

City Manager, A. R. Trelease, reported the unencumbered operating 
fund balance as of January 31, 1968 to be $1,158,656.63. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that the request of the City Manager 
for permission to receive bids on the following be APPROVED: 

1. 20 Steel Traffic Signal Poles (Electrical Division) 
2. 325-Gallons of Herbicides and Insecticides for 1968 

(Street Department) 
3. 15,000 Feet 5" Conductor Cable (Fire Department) 
4. Bleachers for Parks (Park (St Recreation) 

Motion seconded by Commistioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 



• RELEASE OF 
PRISONERS 

Ratified 

CITIZENS 
COMMITTEE FOR 
COMMUNITY 
IMPROVEMENT 

Abeyance 

URBAN RENEWAL 
COMMISSION 

Abeyance 

Commissioner Mirabelli moved that the action of the Mayor in the 
release of the following prisoners be RATIFIED: 

1. DOUGLAS SHANNON 	 LVPD M-67058 
2. JAMES M. STARR 	 LVPD M-67973 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners'Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

ELECTRICAL 
EXAMINING 
BOARD 

Abeyance 

ELECTRICAL EXAMINING BOARD - Terms of 9-members expire 
2/2/68 (2-yr terms). 

(This item held in ABEYANCE until next regular meeting 
3/6/68) 

CITIZENS COMMITTEE FOR COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT - Terms of 
5-members expire 2/3/63 (3-yr terms) 

(This item held in ABEYANCE until the Planning Director 
gives a report on the present membership) 

URBAN RENEWAL COMMISSION - Terms of 5-members expire 2/6/68 
(1-yr terms) 

Commissioner Stewart: I think the Planning Director should make a 
recommendation to us on this item. I think, right now, we should 
appoint this 5-member commission as the Urban Renewal Commission. 

Mayor Gragson: I don't know. I don't think we can without legis-
lative action. 

(Mayor Gragson requested the City Attorney to evaluate this and 
bring back at a later date) 

DISCUSSION RE 
REGIONAL STREETS 
AND HIGHWAY 
COMMISSION 
(Additional Item) 

Commissioner 
Howery's re-
signation accepted - 
Mayor Gragson 
appointed 
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Director of Public Works, R. P. Sauer: Your Honor, I would like to 
point something out to the commission at the moment. The Bond 
Issue for the Regional Streets and Highway was presented to the 
Clark County Commissioners a couple of days ago and it was held. 
I think the two people that held it were Commissioners Briare and 
La Porta. I think you are all aware that this is quite important as 
until such time as this is approved, Charleston Boulevard Will have 
to be held in abeyance. 

Commissioner Stewart: While we are on the subject - Mr. Howery 
has discussed this with me and I thirik he feels the same way. We 
have no more business being on that highway commission than to fly 
to the moon. No matter what we do, the County Commissioners can 
do what they want to do. 

Mayor Gragson: You are wrong. They don't have to do what you do, 
but they can't go on their own and do thing's that....... 



Commissioner Stewart: Just a moment. The District Attorney sits 
here and tells us differently. 

Mr. Sauer: There is-one thing, commissioner, right now, the 
District Attorney, as well as the Technical Committee is working 
on a proposed revision to this legislation that we now have. 
You, being on the board, would probably have some pretty good 
suggestions that we might incorporate into legislative action in 
1969. There are going to be quite a few things brought up, I know. 

Commissioner Stewart: We have had two things happen. Now, we, 
the commission, recommended the hiring of the bonding firm. The 
County Commissioners hired another one. We approved the bonding 
deal - it goes over there, and they are trying to kill it. 

Mr. Sauer: Actually, I don't think it has One that far. The only 
thing I think is that Commissioners Briare and LaPorta had some 
questions and it was just held. It was never voted on. 

Commissioner Howery: If they had some questions, the chairman 
of that board is also the chairman of the County Commission and 
Mr. Ryan also served on it, and they should have bean able to get 
satisfactory andwers from their two commissioners representing 
them on this board. Apparently, they don't have any confidence in 
those two commissioners. As far as I am concerned, my time is too 
valuable to come down here and go -through this hassle with these 
people and then have it go back to the County Commission, and 
have them say "we don't do it" - without any explanation or anything 
else as to why they don't do it. On this commission( there is one 
representative from Boulder City, one from Henderson, one from 
North Las Vegas, two from the City of Las Vegas and two from the 
County Commission. We have a Technical Committee that makes 
recommendations to us, but any action that we take makes no 
difference, because the County Commission has the final say. We 
knew that it was necessary to move immediately on this Bond Issue, 
to finish work we had already committed to purchase right-of-way 
and we had planned to go to work on. We are out of funds. We 
knew that the general bond market was not too good at this time, so 
we can legally sell $8,000,000.00. We said that we would sell 
$4,000,000.00 in the unfavorable market and hold the other 
$4,000,000.00 until it is a favorable market, but this would allow 
us to Oomplete jobs that are now planned and ready to go into con-
struction. For apparently no reason, it goes before the County 
Commission and it is held in abeyance - and, for what? 

Mayor Gragson: I don't think it was ever voted on. There is nobody 
that knows that there is going to be a more favorable market than 
there is today. 

Commissioner Howery: We are willing to take that chance, Mayor. 
It may be worse. I don't know. We do know that we are not in a 
good market today, but we needed the $4,000,000.00 to proceed. 
We are willing to hold up on the other half, because we didn't 
need it right now - maybe we will get a better market and maybe we 
will get a worse one, who knows? 

a 
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Commissioner Stewart: Mayor, the firm that the County Commissioners 
hired says that the chance of having a better market is greater than 
having a worse market six months from now, or a year from,now. 



• 
If the federal government raises taxes and reduces some inflation, 
the market will get better. If the war ends, the market will get 
better. They say the chances of it getting better are greater than 
they are of it getting worse. 

Mr. Sauer: Anyway, it might be mentioned that if you know 
Commissioners Briare and LaPorta, you might put in a good word 
for our cause. 

Commissioner Stewart: If I have to go over there and start arguing 
with them, they can have it - I don't want to serve on the commission. 
They can just run it from start to finish. 

Mayor Gragson: I am going to put it this way. If you want to resign 
from it - but, as long as it is established under the Regional Streets 
and Highway Commission, we are going to have our representatives 
on it. 

Commissioner Howery: I would like to be replaced on it, Your 
Honor. Commissioner. Corey says that he will accept. 

Commissioner Corey: I just reconsidered. 
Mayor Gragson: What is your thinking? 
Commissioner Stewart: If somebody has to serve, I will stay there 
for awhile andaake a look at it and see if some changes can be 
wrought. If we continue on in the same vein, I might be back in a 
month on two and say to put someone else on in place of me. 

Mayor Gragson: Commissioner Howery, would you like to reconsider? 

Commissioner Howery: No, Sir, I would like to be replaced. Lfeel 
that I am wasting my time and everybody else's time. Mayor, I think 
you should be on the board - you were in on it from the start. 

Mayor Gragson: I will ask the commission to consider Commissioner 
Howery's resignation. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that Commissioner Howery's resignation 
from the Regional Streets and Highway Commission be ACCEPTED. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 

Commissioner Howery moved that Mayor Gragson be APPOINTED to 
the Regional Streetssand Highway Commission. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart, Mirabelli and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, 
none. 
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PLUMBERS EXAMIN-
ING BOARD 

Abeyance 

LITTLE LEAGUE 
BASEBALL 

Abeyance 

Mayor Gragson: I would like to say that I would like to have the 
opportunity to serve on what I call one of the most important 
commissions in the County of Clark, and that is the Regional Streets 
and Highway Commission. You are proper when you say that I have 
worked on it. I worked on the 1 gasoline tax to the legislature and 
in all honesty, I would like to serve on that committee. 

Commissioner Stewart: Let me ask you a question. Let's say that 
in the future, the Regional Streets and Highway Commission sits 
down here and determines some new priorities and the majority of 
the members of the Regional Streets and Highway Commission votes 
against the wishes of the County Commissioners - that we recommended 
some priorities, and they disagree. Where do we stand? According 
to Mr. Franklin's decision, as I understand it, they can go ahead and 
establish what they want and pass it and that is the way that it will 
be. 

Mr. Sauer: That is why we are going to go to the legislature with 
suggested changes. If the commissioners and the mayor have any 
ideas and you will let me know what your feelings are, I could pre-
sent them to the Technical Committee so that we could try to get 
them before the legislature. There are a lot of changes that should 
be made in this and I agree with you. 

Mayor Gragson: Let me point this out, gentlemen. Commissioner 
Briare, in all honesty, represents the people of the City of Las 
Vegas, Commissioner LaPorte represents the three other incorporated 
cities and Commissioner Baskin represents the City of Las Vegas and 
'Commissioner Lamb, the Commissioner-at-Large, and there are more 
votes in the City of Las Vegas than there is in all the rest of the 
County, so I believe that if, not in a direct wer„ but in an indirect 
way we have a recourse there. 

PLUMBERS EXAMINING BOARD. Terms of all 10-members expired 
11/3/67 (1-yr terms) (Abeyance 12/20/67 pending ordinance amend-
ment. 

(This item held in ABEYANCE until next regular meeting) 

City Manager: This item, Your Honor, concerns the Little League 
Baseball program. I don't know if there is someone here represent-
ing them tonight or not. 

Commissioner Stewart: No, Fred, what do we have worked out now? 
You attended the last meeting\with them. 

Fred Martin, Supt, Recreation Department: I met with both the 
officers of the Central Little League and the Optimist Little League 
and they are going to submit a letter requesting a field. The Central 
Little League has already done this and the Optimist is going to do 
the same. We are going to try to work out something where they 
can use our fields, depending on what our projected uses are for 
ourselves. 
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COmmissioner Stewart: There is only one problem involved that I 
know of and that isn't an administrative matter. I understand that 
Mr. Harvey has a lease from the City concerning concessions on 
City property and in City Parks. One of the methods on which the 
official Little League operates is that they operate a concession 
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themselves and the proceeds go to pay for the cost of the Little 
League program. 

Mayor Gragson: He does have a five year contract with an option, 
is that right? 

City Manager: I know it is a five-year, but I don't know about the 
option. 

Commissioner Stewart: That is the only program, because the cost 
of the program, the Central Little League, is budgeted right now at 
$12,000.00. We're not going to get $12,000.00 from just the 
sponsors. It's got to come from somewhere else. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: I think if you could see the sales from 
these Little League programs - I don't think that would do it either. 

Commissioner Stewart: No, but this is what is done nationwide in 
the Little League Program. 

Commissioner Mirabelli: Here, we don!t have a lot of spectators 
like they do in a lot of cities. 

Mayor Gragson: He has the contract. Do you have any questions? 

Commissioner Stewart: No. 

Mr. Harvey: May I say a word? 

Mayor Gragson: Yes. 

Mr. Harvey:. Your Honor, and Mr. Commissioners, I believe it is 
a good idea - in fact, I am for anything that will sponsor or create 
a greater interest among the people themselves, especially the 
adults in baseball, and particularly baseball and the Little Leagues; 
however, going back to refresh your memory - four, five, six years 
ago in the ball parks that were in existence, I served in the capacity 
of furnishing wholesale products to various clubs and organizations 
that then tried to make themselves some money for their various 
causes and they wound up owing me money - those that talked fat 
enough to get me to believe them. They also destroyed property 
and left my property and the City's property in shambles. One of 
the things that I have completed since I took the contract over was 
to, at least, keep things presentable, pay the City each month for 
what percentages that were due them - I am continuing to do that 
and I would be happy to say that if you, as a Commission, wish to 
relinquish the City's percentage on the parks to the Little Leagues 
I still believe that I could make them more money by giving them 
the percentage than they could possibly make by operating it them-
selves, because they can't do it. It takes a lot of money to do it 
and roughly $28,000000 worth Of equipment is sitting there for the 
baseball parks, alone, which will open up very shortly. I am open-
ing up Squires Park for the Dog Shows on Sunday. There won't be a 
great deal of business, but they have asked me and I have said "yes." 
Anything that I can do at any time, I am at your service. 

Mayor Gragson: Thank you. 

Commissioner Stewart: Mayor, on this same subject, the idea that 
the Little League has at the moment is to take a complex like Muni 
out here, where you have one lighted field, and at their own expense- 
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1968-69 BUDGET - 
CLARK COUNTY 
REGIONAL PLANNING 
COUNCIL 

Approved in accord-
ance with figures 
as submitted 

1967 ANNUAL 
AUDIT REPORT 

Report only 

it might take them five years, but they will light four more fields - 
to where they willlhave five ball games going at a time - not just 
one. I think it will end up being a very large thing. We might have 
to wait two years to put in a Concession Stand,, but the people are 
willing to operate it free - no labor costs - they already have a 
committee of thirty (30) women and their daughters that are going to 
work in shifts to do it, etc. I just cant see where somebody like 
this can't operate it and make some money when they don't have any 
labor cost. I j ust wanted to report to you from the last meeting. 
There will be another meeting tomorrow night and I am sure at that 
time they can put in writing what they would like to have. 

Mr, Merlin. Jones of the firm, Bunker and Jones, presented the annual 
Audit Report to the Commission. 

(Commissioner Mirabelli was excused at the hour of 3:40 p.m.) 

City Manager, A. R. Trelease: Your Honor, you have in your folders 
a letter from Don J. Saylor, Director of Clark County Regional 
Planning Council, wherein he has stated that they have adopted a 
budget for the coming year in the amount of $55,000.00, which will 

be funded entirely by the Count', which means that they will levy what-
ever portion or percentage that will be necessary. The budget is 
brought before the Commissiin for your consideration. I think your 
consideration would be to approve it. The following budget is sub-
mitted: 

$38,000.00 
15,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 

$55,000.00 

Sanitary Sewer Plan 
Mass Transportation Plan 
Travel & Miscellaneous 
Contingeicies 

Total 

Commissioner Stewart : I think we should. 

Mayor Gragson: Again, if it is going to function as a Regional 
Planning Council, the number one cost, as you see, is the sanitary 
sewer and this must be done, either by us as an individual by our 
own program or the County, as a whole. If I remember correctly, 
we reduced the mass transportation plan down.. from $73,000.00 
to this amount before we recommended it here. I would recommend 
that this Commission approve this and for the County to put the 
assessment on for whatever amount is required for this and this, only, 

Commissioner Stewart: I move that the $55,000.00 budget be 
approved, in principle, for this figure. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Howery and carried by the 
following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, Stewart and 
Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 
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DISCUSSION CONpERN-
ING JOINT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE SCHOOL 
DISTRICT AND THE 
CITY FOR USE OF 
FACILITIES 

City Commission and 
School Board to meet 

• 
•City Manager, A. R. Trelease: Your Honor, awhile back the 

Commission did approve the expenditure of some of our Fair and 
Recreation Funds for improvement of the school owned property 
adjacent to the schools. In the joint use agreements the question 
has come up as to maintenance and the schools have indicated 
that they cannot participate in the maintenance except to the 
extent of paying for the water. It is their line and we could 
have use of the property and maintain them. 

Mayor Gragson: I would like to suggest that, if the school board 
will, this commission and the school board get together as a 
whole and work out at this level, here and at the school board, 
what out joint cooperative efforts in these functions will be. 
What brings this to mind - we had a request from representatives 
of the school district to evaluate the possibility of joint library._ 
services, and actually, when it got to the point, the school board 
itself wanted. no part of it. So, I think that we must go to the 
governing body before we make any commitment at this level. 

Commissioner Howery: I agree. We should set a meeting and 
talk to them so that we can see where we are going. 

Mayor Gragson: I don't think this is the only area that thould be 
discussed, because we are both expending the same money and 
I believe that in every area possible we should have as close 
cooperation as we can, and I would like to know the thinking and 
desire of the school board. 

City Manager: There is a representative here from the school 
district. He could contact members of the school district and 
we could set up a meeting . 

Mayor Gragson: Will you proceed? 

Commissioner Stewart: Fine. 

Mayor Gragson: I am hot indicating at all that this arrangement 
is agreeable, but I do think the two boards should meet and ex-
plore all the possibilities. 

REQUEST APPROVAL 
FOR MAYOR AND 
COMMISSIONER 
MIRABELLI TO ATTEND 
"GROWTH CITY 
SEMINAR" 

Approved 
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Commissioner Howery moved that Mayor Gragson and Commissioner 
Mirabelli be authorized to attend the "GROWTH CITY SEMINAR" 
in Tulsa, Oklahoma on MARCH 3-4-5, 1968, and the Finance 
Director be directed to issue,the necessary funds. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Stewart and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 



• 	• 
ORDINANCE NO. 	 An ordinance entitled "AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE X, 
1318 	 CHAPTER 17 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF LAS 

VEGAS, NEVADA, 1960 EDITION, BY REPEALING SECTION 30 
Referred to 	 THERE OF ENTITLED "PARKING BY DISABLED PERSONS"; 
committee 	 PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY RELATED THERETO; 

AND REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES 
IN CONFLICT HEREWITH" was read by title by City Attorney, 
Sidney R. Whitmore, who recommended that it be REFERRED to 
a committee. 

Mayor Gragson appointed Commissioners Mirabelli and Howerv  
as the Committee for Recommendation on Ordinance No. 1318. 

ORDINANCE NO. 	 An ordinance entitled "AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR A NEW 
1319 	 CHAPTER TO BE ADDED TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY 

OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, 1960 EDITION, TO BE DESIGNATED AS 
Referred to 	 TITLE IX, CHAPTER 16, SECTIONS 1 THROUGH 6; PROVIDING 
committee 	 FOR INSPECTION FEES GOVERNING THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY 

WITHIN THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; PROVIDING FOR IN-
SPECTIONS AND THE PAYMENT OF FEES; REPEALING TITLE III, 
CHAPTER 3 OF SAID CODE IN ITS ENTIRETY; .AMENDING TITLE IX, 
CHAPTER 13, SECTION 5 OF SAID CODE PROVIDING FEES AS 
SCHEDULED IN THIS CHAPTER; REPEALING TITLE IX, CHAPTER 13, 
SECTION 6 OF SAID CODE; PROVIDING OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY 
RELATED THERETO; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION 
HEREOF AND REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDIN-
ANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;' was read by title by City Attorney, 
Sidney R. Whitmore, who recommended that it be referred to committee 
Mayor Gragson appointed Commissioners Stewart and Corey as 
the Committee for Recommendation  on Ordinance No. 1319. 

ORDINANCE NO. 	 An ordinance entitled "AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE XI, 
934-125 	 CHAPTER I, SECTION 3 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY 

OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, 1960 EDITICN , BY AMENDING THE LAND 
Referred to 	 USE PLAN MAP ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS, AND CHANG- 
committee 	 ING THE ZONING DESIGNATION OF SAID MAP:; was read by title 

by City Attorney, Sidney R. Whitmore, who stated that it be re-
ferred to committee. 

Mayor Gragson appointed Commissioners Stewart and Corey as the 
Committee for Recommendation  on Ordinance No. 934-125 

(This item held ABEYANCE for 3/6/68 agenda) PROPOSED AGREE-
MENT BETWEEN CITY 
OF LAS VEGAS & THE 
STATE HIGHWAY 
DEPARTMENT FOR 
FREEWAY R-O-W 
(SQUIRES PARK) 

Abeyance 
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ORDINANCE 
NO 1312 

Abeyance 

• 	• 
ORDINANCE NO. 1312 - REMOVAL OF 400 FT. REQUIREMENT - 
LIQUOR  
Committee: Commissioners Stewart (SE Mirabelli 

(This item held in ABEYANCE for 3/6/68 agenda) 

ORDINANCE 	 ORDINANCE NO. 1315 - AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE NO. 1282 - 
NO. 1315 	 AIR CONDITIONING  

Committee: Commissioner Mirabelli & Stewart 
Abeyance 

(This item held in ABEYANCE for 3/6/68 agenda) 

ORDINANCE 	 ORDINANCE NO. 1316 - COMMUNITY ANTENNA TV SYSTEMS  
NO. 1316 	 Committee: Commissioners Howery & Mirabelli 

Abeyance 	 (This item held in ABEYANCE for 3/6/68 agenda) 

ORDINANCE 	 An ordinance entitled "AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE XI, 
NO, 934-124 	 CHAPTER I, SECTION 3 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY 

OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, 1960 EDITION, BY AMENDING THE LAND 
Adopted 

	

	 USE PLAN MAP ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS, AND CHANG- 
ING THE ZONING DESIGNATION OF SAID MAP" was read by title 
by City Attorney, Sidney R. Whitmore who recommended its 
adoption. 

Commissioner Stewart moved that the foregoing entitled Ordinance 
No. 934-124 be ADOPTED. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Corey and carried by 
the following vote: Commissioners Howery, Corey, 
Stewart and Mayor Gragson voting aye; noes, none. 

(This item held in ABEYANCE for 3/6/68 agenda) PETITION FROM 
LAS VEGAS DOWN-
TOWN HOTEL AND 
CASINO ASSOC. 
RE SLOT MACHINES 

Abeyance 

RE: CLOSER COOPER-
ATION BETWEEN LAS 
VEGAS PUBLIC 
LIBRARY FACILITIES & 
CLARK COUNTY 
SCHOOL LIBRARIES 

Stricken from agenda 
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DATE APPROVED BY THE COMMISSION: 

ADJOURNMENT 	 There being no further business to come before the board, at the 
hourcof".74110L'T:.,M ,;:MadeiGragsdni.clec1ared..thb —meeting 
ADJOURNED. 

APPROVED 

ATTEST: 

ASSISTANT CITY CLERK 
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